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   Notes From Around the
Museum

From the Curator’s Work Bench -

The restoration efforts of the past few months have
continued to concentrate on our San Joaquin & Sierra
Nevada combine, commonly known as SP 1010.  The
restoration continues to pose a variety of challenges and
unique opportunities as we attempt to conserve as much
of the original car as possible, instead of simply rebuilding
the car with new wood and metal.  The ultimate goal of
this restoration is the rebirth of a turn-of-the-century
narrow gauge car and a bit of the way of life that went
along with it.  The more pressing goal is the completing
of the restoration before Railfair in Sacramento, June
1999.

The “unique” weather that we have all suffered through this past winter has resulted in some on-the-fly
regrouping on several of the workdays.  We have managed to hold all workdays on their scheduled days, but
often found ourselves working inside the car rather than on the exterior as originally planned.  The positive in
this is that a great deal of work has been done to the passenger compartment of the car.  Jarrod and Dan Della
Chiesa have spent hours sanding the walls in preparation for the various shades of stain they (the walls, not Dan
and Jarrod!) are soon to receive.  Rolland Howard has done some beautiful work on the windows (as well as
hours of heat gun work under the bonnets on each end when it wasn’t raining too hard).  The various bits and
pieces of the ceiling are mostly back in place (thanks Randy).  Finally, we have started to venture into the
baggage compartment and its badly flaking paint.  John Stutz has spent large portions of the last two workdays
removing the paint from the baggage end door.

When the weather finally did clear up, we were able to once again concentrate our efforts on the outside of the
car.  We have patched the infamous V&T leak in the roof once-and-for-all (fingers crossed!).  One side of the
car has received several iterations of painting and sanding with help from almost everyone, particularly Bob
Tupper.  While this sometimes seems pointless—the primer is white, the paint green so sanding the paint
smooth, and therefore exposing the underlying primer, often makes the car look quite bad—the finish is starting
to look very nice.  Advice from Kevin Bunker has been very helpful in achieving a nice finish.  We have now
started to focus on the other, long neglected side of the car.  With the procedures learned on the side that is
now green, progress on the second side promises to be significantly accelerated.  The siding is in much better
shape and just received its first coat of primer (courtesy of Mal Evett) in ages.  A little sanding, filling, sanding,
painting, sanding, painting, sanding, painting...and it’ll look great!

Meanwhile, work has not been confined to the wood bits.  Bruce MacGregor has made a few visits from
Oregon and has taken on the challenge of having the end rails and couplers fabricated.  This involves preparing
some new drawings and coordinating the work with our blacksmith.  We’re looking forward to the installation
later this summer which will (finally) enable us to move the car without any of the various Rube Goldberg
attachments we have used in the past.

We continue to hold workdays on the third Saturday of each month. Tuesday evening workdays are also now in
full swing.  We have an e-mail list and a regular mail list for notification of upcoming dates—if you are
interested in receiving a reminder notice before each workday, please let me know at (408) 370-3555 or
rhill@opticworks.com.
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The Horse Report
Both of our horses, Jiggs and Tucker, have weathered their (wet) winter vacation well, and are now returning
to work.  Tucker is wearing a special rubber pad on one of his rear feet,
between his hoof and the shoe, as a result of a foot bruise (we blame it on El
Niño.)  While he could pull the train in an emergency, we plan on letting him
take it easy a little while longer.  In the mean time Jiggs is happily pulling the
train, waiting for either Tucker or the Plymouth locomotive to get well and help
out.

Also, does anyone want a kitten?  One of the park cats had a litter in our feed
barn.  We plan on keeping one of the kittens as a “mouser” but have several
more available.  We are working on plans to capture the mother to have her spayed, before she adds any
additional park residents.

If you are interested in a kitten, or in volunteering on the train, call Mary Jane at (510) 796-9164.

A Carter Brothers Trivia Question ...
In our last issue we ask the question,  One of the cars in our collection was in an Elvis Presley movie.  Which
car and which movie?  If you missed the general meeting, the answer was (drum roll...) Nevada Central boxcar
253, originally built for the Monterey and Salinas Railroad in 1874.  It appeared in Viva Las Vegas  .  In the
movie the car can be seen in the background of one scene...at the time it was part of a display of historic
railroad junk outside a casino.

The Store
The store is proud to announce they now have Beenie Pets.  Additionally the store needs volunteers, call Pat at
(510) 796-8615...

The Park Contract
At our last general meeting we were discussing our contract with East Bay Regional Park District, and the long-
term effects on our organization’s future.  While at this writing we still don’t have a contract signed, we have a
contract which is signable.  The only details left involve repairing pasture fences and similar minor issues.  The
board believes that it has identified a scenario which will result in a long-term contract, and thereby allow us to
invest in the first car shop building, and finally get our collection under cover.

Dues
In our last issue we reminder everyone that membership dues are now due, but we forgot to provide details
such as how much and where to send the money.  Whoops!  So this time we have included a membership form.
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Cruel and Unusual Motive Power  (Part 2)

Park visitors are frequently surprised by our use of horses to pull trains, and somewhat concerned for
their well-being. While concern for the health and safety of horses may be historically justified, the mere fact
of their use was so common that it should not be cause for comment. We now inaugurate a series of  the odd,
the strange, the historically interesting, and the out-and-out bizarre solutions to motive power needs [and we
are not making these up].

Power from the People!

In The Lore of the Train  , auth
or C. Hamilton Ellis traces back
what he calls "the railroad idea" to
6th century Asia and tramways
used to move large stones for
building temples. As you can see
from figure #1, the motive power
was a lot of people, pushing and
tugging. People continued to be the
primary source of motive power for
centuries, and as we shall survey in
this installment, this basic source of
power was used well into
modern times.

The more common forms of people-powered railways are ones we should all be
familiar with, since we use some of them ourselves—the various forms of hand cars
detailed on this page from the 1879 Railroad Car Builders Pictorial Dictionary  
[figure #2].

One early oddity of note is seen in
figure #3, described as "a pleasure
railway" in Railroads in the Days of  
Steam  .  It was built in 1714 at
Versailles by Louis the XIV, and
featured a new invention—a
"turntable."  It also featured, as you
can see, be-wigged servant power.

fig. 1

fig. 2

fig. 3



But this series owes its title and inspiration
to Robert Hughes' description of the first
railway in Australia, built in the 1840s:

"It was a true curiosity, a small
landmark in the history of transportation...
It connected the dock at the head of
Norfolk Bay, by Eaglehawk Neck, to the
main settlement at Port Arthur some 4.5
miles away. On it, supplies and people
could be taken to the coal mines and the
Neck without a long detour by sea around
the peninsula. It was laid along a
switchback route through the dense gum
[eucalyptus] and
fern forest, sawn hardwood rails about 6 inches by 3 inches
were nailed to rough sleepers bedded in clay. Wooden bridges carried the line across the gullies. It had no
engine, the power was supplied by convicts, propelling it at a trot, pushing against crossbars at front and rear
[figure #4].  Its carriages were four-passenger carts, running on cast-iron mine-truck wheels... The trucks
[cars]... could rattle downhill at 30 MPH,  a terrifying velocity at a time when people seldom went faster that
a trotting horse."

Hughes also quotes an 1851 visitor to Port Arthur, Colonel Godfrey Mundy:
"...down they rattled at tremendous speed...the chains around their ankles chinking and clanking as

they trotted along...[T]he runners jumped upon the side of the trucks in rather unpleasant proximity with the
passengers, and away we all went, bondsmen and freemen, jolting and swaying... a man sitting behind
contrived, more or less to lock a wheel with a wooden crowbar when the descent became so rapid as to call for
remonstrance."

There was another convict railway
operated on the Tasman Peninsula
about the same time, and although
not common, convict-power was
tried in the United States during the
great Epizootic (a type of horse flu)
of 1872,  which claimed almost a
quarter of the horse and mule
population of the United States and
brought the country to a standstill
for three months.  The experiment
with human power was reportedly
less than successful [figure 5].
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And finally, to touch lightly on the modern era, in 1978 Charles S. Small documented some shortlines on
Taiwan—several of which were even at that date people-powered, and one at least—The Yu Na coal mine
operation—had [are you ready for this?] a Helper District!  The six mile long line had passing sidings, a

passenger station, and even a 600 meter long
tunnel.
Figures 6
through
9, with
Mr.
Small's
original
captions,
leave me
unusually
speech-
less--until
the next
issue, at
least.

(Editor’s Note:  Nate, Speechless!!!!)

Sources:

Ellis, C. Hamilton,. The Lore of the Train  , Crescent, 1973
Forney, Matthias N., The Railroad Car Builder's Pictorial  
Dictionary   [1879], Dover reprint, 1974;  McCready, Albert
L., Railroads in the Days of Steam  , American Heritage, 1960
Hughes, Robert, The Fatal Shore  , Alfred A Knopf, 1987
Rawsome, Frank, Trolley Car Treasury  , McGraw Hill, 1956
Schelerth, Thomas J., Victorian America: Transformations in Everyday Life  ,
HarperCollins, 1991
Small, Charles S., Rails to the Mines: Taiwan's Forgotten Railways  ,  Railroad
Monographs, 1978.

Next: New York's First Subway--It Sucked! fig  9 – The helpers drift downgrade.

fig. 6 – The helper (female) and the regular locomotives have been
waiting for a northbound empty to clear the tunnel.  Now that it has
emerged they have a hard job starting the train for its tunnel transit.  The
helper only goes as far as the tunnel portal.

fig. 7 – The earth between the ties has
been pounded down by the pressure of
the pusher’s feet.

fig. 8 – The helper station.  All coal trains pick-up a
helper here for the steep grade to the north portal
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The Locomotive Report  

If you have been to the farm recently you may have noticed that Rusty Mary, our 1923 Plymouth DL 2
locomotive, is in pieces  (lots of pieces).  Last year as we worked with the locomotive it became obvious that
something was wrong.  The locomotive was pulling less and less.  After several attempts to adjust the clutch
(with mixed results) we finally we had to admit that the clutch was worn out.  John Theberge finally attacked
the problem.  We understood from the literature that we have on the locomotive that the clutch was easily
replaced, but as far as we can tell either no one remembers how, or life in the 1920’s was more difficult and as
a result it just seemed easy.

To get at the clutch John decided to remove all the body work.  This will also give us an opportunity
to have the sheet metal sand blasted and repainted.  Rusty Mary may need a new name when we are done.
Before we sent the sheet metal out, we completed a paint survey, and George Korener carefully photographed
the locomotive.  The survey suggests the locomotive was originally black, later may have been green, and still
later orange.  We have decided to repaint it in black, with the raised Plymouth lettering on the frame and
radiator in red.  We have yet to find any lettering information, but will develop something based on “standard”
Plymouth practices.

As John works on the locomotive we have learned much about it.  It is truly well designed.  For the
most part we find it easy and logical to work on.  Considering its short service (only 6 years from 1923 to
1929) it has been worked on a lot.  The transmission has been apart once.  The clutch linkage has been broken
and welded more than once, but generally the loco is as built.

We would like to extend a special thanks to Dave Wyatt at Fremont Hitch & Weld for welding a piece
of the clutch linkage that had broken.  This was clearly a nasty and difficult project.  Without his efforts the
locomotive might not be available until fall.  And when the time came to pick-up the piece the charge was...
Free!  Thanks, Dave.

John has been working on the locomotive most Tuesday nights—and he could use some help—come
by and try it.

On other news, we are developing a plan to resurrect our Whitcomb once the plymouth is complete.
At the suggestion of mechanics from Cargill Salt we are considering converting the locomotive to a hydraulic
drive system.  More on that later...

Enjoy the ad for Old Mission Cement, owner of our Plymouth, and the Specification Sheet for our
Whitcomb...



Voices from the Volcano,
now known as

The Octopus
and the Volcano

The Story of California Workers and the
Great Pullman Railroad Strike of 1894

is being presented as part of the

San Francisco LaborFest ‘98,
Sunday July 19th, at 3:00 p.m.
at the South of Market Cultural Center
934 Brannan, San Francisco (between 8th & 9th)

For information contact Nate at (510) 569-4311
or for reservations call (415) 642-8066

Tickets $9.00  (children are less)

A Sunday Walk Through the Canyon

Join us on Sunday, July 12, for a walk through Niles Canyon lead by SPCRR President Randy
Hees.  This will be sponsored jointly by Pacific Locomotive Association and the Society for
Industrial Archeology.  We will gather at the Sunol Station at 11:00 a.m. and walk the seven
miles down to Niles.  Along the way we will inspect the bridges and culverts of the canyon line,
and look for any evidence of the 1865 railroad line.  This will give us a chance to see this
nearby historic railroad from a different perspective, and allow us to stop and linger wherever
we find interesting artifacts.  The walk is moderately strenuous, so wear heavy shoes and bring
water and a snack.  From Niles we will return by special train.  There is no charge for PLA
members, but non-PLA members should plan on a $5.00 donation for the train ride.

For information call Randy Hees at (650) 347-5055.
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“The Curse of California”

                — From “The Wasp”, 1882

Announcements and other nonsense



SPCRR
PO Box 783
Newark CA 94560

First Class

SPCRR Calendar  

Remember—Tuesday night work calls at the farm, 5:00 p.m. or so until dark (or sometimes later) and (there
is always an “and”) we need volunteers for Saturday operating crews.  Call Randy or Mary Jane.

June  
          -Friday, June 19, 7:00 p.m., General        

    Meeting at Ardenwood
          -Saturday, June 20, Restoration Day
          -Saturday, June 27, Fire Engine Day
July  
          -July 4, Independence Day at the 

    Farm, Special Event Schedule
          -Wednesday, July 15, in the evening,     

    George Patterson’s Birthday Party
          -Saturday, July 18, Restoration Day
          -Saturday & Sunday, July 18 & 19,   

    Summer Farm Fair, Special Event   
    Schedule, “All hands on deck” 

          -Sunday, July 19, Octopus & Volcano, in 
    San Francisco

August  
-Saturday & Sunday, August 15 & 16, 
    Tentative Special Event, Civil War 
    Encampment -
-Saturday, August 21, Restoration Day

September  
-Friday, September 18, 7:00 p.m.,
     General Meeting at Ardenwood, 
     (program to be announced)
-Saturday, September 19, Restoration Day
-September 26 & 27, Cajun-Zydeco 
    Festival, Special Event Schedule

October  
-October 17 & 18, Harvest Festival and 
    Restoration Weekend
-October 23, 24, 25, 29, & 30, Haunted 
    Train, “All hands on deck”


